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MEMO 

TO:  Voluntary Response Action Program (VRAP) Practitioners 

FROM: Chris Redmond, Maine DEP VRAP Manager 

DATE: August 15, 2025 

SUBJECT: VRAP Site Figures for Certificates of Completion 

What is the issue with figures on final certification documents? 

In recent years VRAP has seen an increasing number of VRAP Certificates of Completion (COC) get 
rejected for recording by various county registry of deeds due to poor quality figures.  This is also true if 
a figure is included in the associated environmental covenant, although a figure is optional on covenants.  
Sometimes figures provided by the applicant or their team are of poor quality and, even if accepted by 
the registry of deeds for recording, they scan poorly and essentially become useless. This is inconvenient 
for all the parties involved and leads to delays. 

From time to time, DEP files get lost or destroyed and DEP may have to rely on the copies that were 
recorded at the registry of deeds.  If the associated figures are of poor quality, it can take a substantial 
amount of time to figure out the boundaries of a site.  If it is done right the first time, we won’t have that 
problem. 

Colorful and detailed figures are excellent for a Phase II ESA but are terrible for a COC that will be 
scanned at low resolution and in black and white at the registry of deeds.  The intent of the COC figure 
is to show the approximate site boundaries and relevant site features only.  It is not a legal survey. 

We have met with the head of the registrars to discuss their expectations.  These figures need to be: 

• simple black and white line drawings
• marked with clear site boundary
• have a legend showing “site” boundary
• have a scale
• at least 10 point font throughout
• labeled with map/lot numbers
• adjacent streets labeled for reference
• no aerial photos or shading since it won’t scan well
• 1” margins

Several examples of VRAP site figures pulled from the registry of deeds are attached, along with some 
commentary explaining why they are good or bad. 
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This is a good figure.  Text is large enough to read, site boundary is easy to identify, it clearly shows cover systems, has an easy to read scale, adjacent streets labeled for reference.
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This is a decent figure which scanned well.  The legend should have had a dashed line for the site boundary and there is probably more information about the former site structures than is needed.
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Aerial photo scanned poorly, can't tell where the site is.  This site had a "restricted no dig area", the originals VRAP documents were lost, so this is the only copy we have and it's pretty useless.
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This figure is fairly legible, has the map/lot numbers, adjacent roads are identified, although the text in the initial figure was too small so street labels had to be added by DEP.  It is missing a scale and a legend.
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Font is too small, too much shading/background which makes the font hard to read, font is also too small, site boundary is unclear.
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This is not a great figure.  Font is too small to read, it scanned poorly, legend is difficult to read and was color coded which doesn't work well when scanned in B&W.  Adjacent streets are not legible.
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This is not a great figure, the aerial photo looked great in the original, but did not scan well.  Font is too small on figure and in the legend.
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Zoomed out too far, no legend, etc.  Not what we are looking for.
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Zoomed out too far, shaded areas scan poorly, not what we are looking for.
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zoomed out to far, poor quality
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